BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOL

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www.brooksidecharier.ore

BSDS, Inc¢ dba Brookside Charter School

AGENDA
January 27, 2020
5:30 pm Library

1. Motion to accept the agenda
2. Approval of November Board of Director minutes
{December CANCELLED due to weather)
3. Grant Presentation:
Legacy Grants for Student Health from Baptist-Trinity Lutheran Legacy Feundation
4. Visitors Comments and Addressing Agenda Items
5. Financial Committee Report

a) EdOps Dashboard — Need Board Approval
b) Check Registry — Need Board Approval
6. Review of Board Goals:
A. By June 30, 2020 the Board will begin to utilize an academic dashboard for the purpose
of monitoring student academic achievement at BCS. Kiva & Sherry.
B. By March, 2020 the Board will develop a process, including and annual timeline, for the
purpose of establishing an annual evaluation of the Superintendent position. Eric & Kraig
C. By May 2020, each member of the Board agrees to: 1. Attend 80% of the BOE meetings,
2. Contribute a monetary amount to BCS that is personal and meaningful to them, and 3.
Attend two BCS events throughout the 2019-20 school year. Jason
D. By May 2020, the Board will receive a progress update on development efforts and help
to identify additional opportunities for exploration. Kraig, Larry, and Jim Stacy
7. Athletics/Activities Update — Brian Witt
8. Extended Care/Family Services Update — Kamilah Lee

Posted 1/22/2020
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOL

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www.brooksidecharter.org

9. Superintendent’s Report
a) Enrollment 2019-20
b) YTD Average Daily Attendance (ADA)
¢) NMTC Refinance Update Jim Stacy
10. Development Committee Update —
a) Goals for 2019-2020
b) Golf Touwrnament — Title Sponsorship
c) Gift Letter for 2019-2020
d) STEAM/Appreciation Dinner
11. Policies Update:
Procurement Policy update - Needs Approval
Food and Nutrition Service CNR Resource - Corrective Action
Homeless Dispute Resolution - Needs Approval
October Tiered Monitoring Corrective Action
Foster Care Dispute Resolution - Needs Approval
October Tiered Monitoring Corrective Action
Increase Adult Meal Pricing Lunch from $3.50 to $3.90 Lunch - Needs Approval
Food and Nutrition Setvice Corrective Action - the value of Adult meals should
be equal to or greater than the cost of free reimbursement $3.50 plus the value of
donated commodities $0.3625. Should be $3.86 or higher

12. Motion to adjourn

Next Meeting — Monday, February 24, 2020

Posted 1/22/2020
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOL

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www.brooksidecharter.ore

Attending Meetings of the Board of Director

Visitors are welcome to attend the open sessions of the meeting of the Board of Directors. Members of
the Board of Directors and Brookside Administration are the participants during these meetings.

Procedures for Petitioning the Board of Directors

L. If the issue/concern involves the classroom, meet with your child’s teacher. If the problem is
not resolved, contact the Administration.
2. If the issue/concern involves the daily operation of the school, contact the Administration.
3. If the issue/concern involves school policy (Family Handbook), contact the Board of Directors
following these procedures:
a. Submit a one-page brief of the issue. Briefs to the Board of should be sent to Brookside
Charter School.

b. The Board of Directors will respond. Responses could be inclusion on the agenda for a
Board of Director’s meeting, or a written reply, or a referral to the Administration.
4. Guidelines for Speaking at a Board Meeting
a. Visitor's Comments

Each regular business meeting opens with an opportunity for visitors to make comments to the
board. Persons who wish to address any subject concerning education may do so at this time.
The board president will call the meeting to order and then ask for comments from the audience.
Patrons are asked to keep their remarks concise. This portion of the meeting shall not exceed
one-half hour and those addressing the board are asked to limit their remarks.

b. Addressing Agenda Items

A person wishing to address an item on the official agenda during the business portion of the
meeting must complete a request form, these forms are located as you enter the board room.
The form is to be completed and returned to the Board Secretary/Clerk prior to the start of the
meeting. Persons may speak only once on an agenda item and for no more than three minutes
without consent of the board. In the event board members agree that the normal flow of
business is being unnecessarily delayed, they may, by majority vote, waive public
participation.

The above information is part of the Family Handbook. Families are given a copy of the Family
Handbook.

Posted 1/22/2020
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




U T TV T u”"’“%‘. T 5 T TS “*1 e CHATYATNT
OKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOL
FRTS Bast 63rd Sireet, Ransas City MO 64130
PHONL: 816-831-2192 FAX: B16-T55-3055

www brooksidecharier.org

BSDS, Inc dba Brookside Charter School

MINUTES
November 25, 2019
5:30 pm Library

Directors Present: E. Sipes, 8. Twyman, K. Kohring, V. Miller, L. Ehren, J. LaSalle, K. Dennis
Directors Absent: Guests Present: R. Offield, K. Sales, Steve Gering, J. Stacy

1.

Opening Items
a) Record Attendance and Guests
b) Call the Meeting to Order

1. E. Sipes called the meeting of the board of directors of Brookside Charter School
to order on Monday, November 25, 2019 at 5:30 pm at Library, Brookside Charter
School, 1815 E. 63" St., Kansas City, MO 64130

¢) Motion to Accept the Agenda
1. E. Sipes made a motion to Accept the Agenda
. V. Miller seconded the motion
iii. The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion — Approved
d) Approve Minutes

i. V. Miller made a motion to approve the minutes from the BSDS, Inc. dba
Brookside Charter School on 10-28-2019.

ii. L.Ehren seconded the motion

iii. The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion ~ Approved

¢) Visitors Comments and Addressing Agenda Items
i. Steve Gering
1. One on One coach for R. Officld through Schoo! Smart KC
2. 6 months has been completed and was renewed for another 6 months

f) Videos and Announcements

Posted 11/21/2019
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOL

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www.brooksidecharter.org

2. Financial Committee Report
a) Previous Month
i. Last month’s changes are holding
ii. Last month’s changes are predicated on what the district (KCPS) does
ili. Will have clearer picture in January
b) Dashboard — Need Approval
i. Sipes Motioned to Approve Financial Report
ii. Ehren Seconded Motion
ili. Board Voted to Approve Financial Report
¢) Check Registry — Need Board Approval
i. Less money spent this month
it. New vendor NEWSELA — Middle School Software for SEL
iii. Communities in Schools
1. Part of School Smart KC
2. TL Foster — Site Coordinator & Social Worker

iv.V. Miller presented to the Board of Directors the Check registry and
recommended the board approve the Check registry as presented

v. V. Miller made a motion to approve the check registry as presented in email
vi. 8. Twyman scconded the motion
vii. The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion — Approved
3. Review of Board Goals
a) By June 30, 2020 the Board will begin to utilize an academic dashboard for the
purpose of monitoring student academic achievement at BCS. Kiva & Sherry.
i. Innovare Review
b) By March, 2020 the Board will develop a process, including and annual timeline, for
the purpose of establishing an annual evaluation of the Superintendent position. Eric
& Kraig
i. Education Board Partners has a tool we will use going foward
¢) By May 2020, each member of the Board agrees to: 1. Attend 80% of the BOE
meetings, 2. Contribute a monetary amount to BCS that is personal and meaningful to
them, and 3. Attend two BCS events throughout the 2019-20 school year. Jason
i. Discussed option to “remote in” for absent board members

Posted 11/21/2019
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOIL.

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www.brooksidecharter.ore

ii. Option has merit, however more research is needed to determine if a board
member can be deemed present through an audio only medium or if an
audio/visual medium is required to remain in compliance

d) By May 2020, the Board will receive a progress update on development efforts and

help to identify additional opportunities for exploration. Kraig, Larry, and Jim Stacy

4. Operations Update ~ Craig Frazier

a) Handout

i. Facilities Projects over Summer Break 2019
1.  Inspections

" a.  Fire Sprinkler, Plumbing Backflow, Fire Alarm and Smoke head

and Annual Fire inspections
Installed sinks
Painted
Parking Lot repairs
Elevator Hydraulic oil cooler installed
HVAC units serviced '
Moved 16 rooms, 8 offices and moved locker combinations

Carpets cleaned

e A

Stained wood foot bridge

f—
=

Electrician rewired two outlets in kitchen, two outlets in room 14 and
one in the elevator service closet and 10 emergency flood lights and 4
exit signs were changed out

11. Completed drop door test

12. ETC

Posted 11/21/2019
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOL

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www.brooksidecharter.ore

3. Technology Update — Kelly Sales
a) Technology Director
i. Liaison between Brookside Charter staff and K12 ltc
b) Leader in Me Coach
i. Goal is for Brookside Charter to achieve Leader in Me Lighthouse Status
ii. Students sold the impact of Leader in Me during Brookside Charter’s Readiness
Check
iii. Brookside Charter achieved 19 of the 27 components of the rubric
¢) Specials Director
6. Superintendent’s Report
a) Enrollment 2019-20
i. Enrollment at 737 with 30 PreK students
ii. Budget not built on PreK numbers
b) YTD Average Daily Atiendance (ADA)
i. Budget built on 93.5%
il. We are just under 95%
¢) NMTC Refinance Update
i. Two Options
ii. Equitable Facilities Funding
I.  30-year favorable rate
2. 2 million over refinance
iil. Tax Exempt Bonds still an option
iv. Allow both sides to know there is competition
v. Term sheet December
vi. Letter by February

vii. Process will be completed by June 30, 2020

Posted 11/21/2019
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOL

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www . brooksidecharter.org

d) KCPS MOU — Need Board Approval
i. Due by December 4, 2019
ii. KCPS disregarded any “tweaks” and other feedback from charters
ili. There is risk if we do nothing and risk if we move forward
iv. Twyman Motioned to Approve and Sign the MOU
1. Direct Quote: “Sign the Sucker!”
v. Ehren Seconded Motion
vi. The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion - Approved
¢) New Tenant in bank across the street
1. Bar that serves BBQ
il. Citadel (our partner) is opposed
iii. Kaufmann is opposed
iv. Brookside Charter is opposed .
1. We have written a letter outlining our position
2. Board agrees with this decision
7. Development Committee
a) Goals for 2019-20
b) Golf Tournament
c¢) Gift Letter for 2019-20
i. Donation tab on website
ii. Send gift letter to board in MS Word for personalization
lil. Next year bring hard copies to board meeting
iv. Incorporate 501(c)3 Non-Profit Charity Tax ID# into gift letter
v. Capture Donor contact information
d) STEAM/Appreciation Dinner
i. Steam Fair in spring

ii. Dinner on April 23, 2020 or April 30, 2020

Posted 11/21/2019
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOIL.

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www . brooksidecharter.ore

8. Superintendent Evaluations
a)} Timeline for 2019-20
i. No further updates
b) Expectations
i. Innovare Meeting
il. All board members will need to participate

iii. Hopeful for electronic system to be in place by end of year

9. Motion to adjourn
a) L. Ehren made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
b) K. Dennis seconded the motion

¢) The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

d) There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:26 pm

Next Meeting — Monday, December 16, 2019

—\4LU‘ SYMW\ J -

)

3 1’\1.3\)\»\6

Posted 11/21/2019
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOL

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www.brooksidecharter.ore

- Attending Meetings of the Board of Director

Visitors are welcome to attend the open sessions of the meeting of the Board of Directors. Members of
the Board of Directors and Brookside Administration are the participants during these meetings.

Procedures for Petitioning the Board of Directors

1. If the issue/concern involves the classroom, meet with your child’s teacher. If the problem is
not resolved, contact the Administration.

If the issue/concern involves the daily operation of the school, contact the Administration.

If the issue/concern involves school policy (Family Handbook), contact the Board of Directors
following these procedures:

a. Submit a one-page brief of the issue. Briefs to the Board of should be sent to Brookside
Charter School.

hali ol

b. The Board of Directors will respond. Responses could be inclusion on the agenda for a
Board of Director’s meeting, or a written reply, or a referral to the Administration.
Guidelines for Speaking at a Board Meeting
a. Visitor's Comments

g

Each regular business meeting opens with an opportunity for visitors to make comments to the
board. Persons who wish to address any subject concerning education may do so at this time.
The board president will call the meeting to order and then ask for comments from the audience.
Patrons are asked to keep their remarks concise. This portion of the mesting shall not exceed
one-half hour and those addressing the board are asked to limit their remarks.

b. Addressing Agenda Items

A person wishing to address an item on the official agenda during the business portion of the
meeting must complete a request form, these forms are located as you enter the board room.
The form is to be completed and returned to the Board Secretary/Clerk prior to the start of the
meeting. Persons may speak only once on an agenda item and for no more than three minutes
without consent of the board. In the event board members agree that the normal flow of

business is being unnecessarily delayed, they may, by majority vote, waive public
participation.

The above information is part of the Family Handbook. Families are given a copy of the Family
Handbook.

Posted 11/21/2019
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOL

1815 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www.brooksidecharter.ore

BSDS, Inc dba Brookside Charter School

AGENDA
December 16, 2019 (Meeting Cancelled due to Inclement Weather)
5:30 pm Library

Electronic Vote Need — December 20, 2019
1. FY 2019 Audit — Need Board Approval

* An electronic (email) vote will be sent out Thursday, December 19% @ 12:30 pm
* Board will need to respond to approve by Friday, Decmeber 20, 2019 @ Sam

Review of Board Goals:
By June 30, 2020 the Board will begin to utilize an academic dashboard for the purpose of
monitoring student academic achievement at BCS. UPDATE: Kiva & Sherty

By March, 2020 the Board will develop a process, including and annual timeline, for the purpose
of establishing an annual evaluation of the Superintendent position. UPDATE: Eric & Kraig

By May 2020, each member of the Board agrees to: 1. Attend 80% of the BOE meetings, 2.
Contribute a monetary amount to BCS that is personal and meaningful to them, and 3. Attend
two BCS events throughout the 2019-20 school year. UPDATE: Jason & Jusmine

By May 2020, the Board will receive a progress update on development efforts and help to
identify additional opportunities for exploration. UPDATE: Kraig & Larry

Next Meeting — Monday, January 27, 2019

,«/ /\/vaj/ juﬁ%ua(, ) j/@'/;

Posted 12/18/2019
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BROOKSIDE CHARTER SCHOOIL

18135 East 63rd Street, Kansas City MO 64130
PHONE: 816-531-2192 FAX: 816-756-3055

www.brooksidecharter.org

Attending Meetings of the Board of Director

Visitors are welcome to attend the open sessions of the meeting of the Board of Directors. Members of
the Board of Directors and Brookside Administration are the participants during these meetings.

Procedures for Petitioning the Board of Directors

1. If the issue/concern involves the classtoom, meet with your child’s teacher. If the problem is
not resolved, contact the Administration.

2. If the issue/concern involves the daily operation of the school, contact the Administration.

3. If the issue/concern involves school policy (Family Handbook), contact the Board of Directors
following these procedures:

a. Submit a one-page brief of the issue. Briefs to the Board of should be sent to Brookside
Charter School.

b. The Board of Directors will respond. Responses could be inclusion on the agenda for a
Board of Director’s meeting, or a written reply, or a referral to the Administration.
4. Guidelines for Speaking at a Board Meeting
a. Visitor's Comments

Each regular business meeting opens with an opportunity for visitors to make comments to the
board. Persons who wish to address any subject concerning education may do so at this time.
The board president will call the meeting to order and then ask for comments from the audience.
Patrons are asked to keep their remarks concise. This portion of the meeting shall not exceed
one-half hour and those addressing the board are asked to limit their remarks.

b. Addressing Agenda Items

A person wishing to address an item on the official agenda during the business portion of the
meeting must complete a request form, these forms are located as you enter the board room.
The form is to be completed and retuned to the Board Secretary/Clerk prior to the start of the
meeting. Persons may speak only once on an agenda item and for no more than three minutes
without consent of the board. In the event board members agree that the normal flow of
business is being unnecessarily delayed, they may, by majority vote, waive public
participation.

The above information is part of the Family Handbook. Families are given a copy of the Family
Handbook.

Posted 12/19/2019
Supt. Office & Front Lobby




BOARD OF DIRECTORS .

Stephen C. Salanski, MD
Chair

Craig Roeder
Viee Chair

Harley Metcalfe
Secretary

Kurt Saylor
Treasurer

Cheryl Anderson
Sara Colt

Bette Croes
Elizabeth Deckert
Shelly Iseman

Rich Jones

Shananon Kuezynski
Jasan Lofton
Maggie Ross
Jennifer Tieman, MD
Kenneth Woodward

Beth Radtke
Executive Director

Emeritus Birectors
Virginia Coppinger
James B. Earnest, MD
Careline French
Roger Gieschen

John McKeever

Jane P, Rues, EdD
Al'W, Tikwart, I
David A. Tillema, MD

BIL

BAPTISTTRINITY LUTHERAN

LzGacy FOUNDATION

January 13, 2020

Ms, Anastasia Linebach
Brookside Charter Scheol
1815 E. 63rd St.

Kansas City, MO 64130

Dear Ms. Linebach,

Congratulations! On behalf of the Health Education Committee of Baptist-Trinity
Lutheran Legacy Foundation, | am pleased to present the award of $732.33 to
Brookside Charter School through our Legacy Grants for Student Health program.
Your district's Legacy Grants for Student Health award is designated for the items
listed on your approved Grant Qutcomes Repert as returned to you in a previous
communication regarding your grant.

The Foundation is honered to partner with Brookside Charter School. You should
have already received communication regarding the reporting requirements and
deadlines by e-mail. We look forward ta reviewing your success for the 18-month
period of this grant. :

If you wish to recognize our support in print or online, please acknowledge the
Foundation as: Baptist-Trinity Lutheran Legacy Foundation. For 2 Foundation
logo, please contact our office.

Please email or call Tammy Collingsworth with any questions or concerns you
may have. Tammy can be reached at tammy@biilf.org or 816-276-7518,

Sincerely,

Beth Radtke
Executive Director

6675 Holmes Rd., Suite 470, Kansas City, MO 64121
816-276-7555  Fax 816-817-0547 - billforg







[

sieloURUI4 XipUuaddy

S@oUBLIEA 1SED38104 31gRION

%

&

YIuop Siy] sebueyd 1seda404 As)

Aio3SIH 1SB32404 =

£l

1SE28404 UsedD

MBIAIBAD 1SBDSICH =

e

S10]e3IPpU} 8JuBWLIOLIBd ASY -




uibiewl ssouff %0 e spistA
1 19B8png su} M0124 %8$ S YoM
M- Sl SWOdUI 18U PSISeI8I0) 8U |

NIDHYI SSOHD %0
D\m@.ﬂ -

Qo
ILe)

b4,
%G
%01
yA

anuansd
AqG papilp ‘sasuadxa ssa] anuanay

uib.aej] sso.in

yauowl 3sey ueyl (s)Aep

SS8] 0 PUR 'SARD 09 PepUSLILLIODS
Byl eAoqe s siYl 'ysed Jo shep ¥Et
Ul 294 84} pua NIM 1004IS 8Y L

GN3 S.HVIA LY HSVD 4O SAVQ PET

O

sasuadxe App s0DEAR AG
PORIAID PUS-IDAA 0 80UDIDG S0

yseo jo sheq




= AQ usAl(

SUIp)INg 404 S| %02
Uo4l /O] O paleal
mmmw\_uc_ 1582210

0] 12q0o120 WolH

"SNUBASY (e207)
Aq1esyo Anerped
195 PO0 jeiope-
QU JSQUUBACN Ul
[BlIadxXe anusnsy

SIUSWIWOD

sjydess; sousiies

AV LS- A19$
HL9S- ©
A8$- 19%
AVS§ WEeS
329%- WLO$

Ay}
i

ysed

1693 ul abueyd
s S
Hes- SWODU[ 19N
wg'6% sosuadxy
wo'6% snuaAsy
ISBISI0L




152810

syen}oy

‘Butpuimun JLAN Buimerio;

WG 12 8ouRieq Yseo sAagy o1 suleusd
1BOE) TIRIMIOUS 8NuUdASs O a5uodssl

L1 IBCUUSACRN /1900100 Ul pejusius|dil

chusispes] sebueys uo peseg
07 Ad J0p sougeq splemol Buipusi]
51 188png JeuUonRISdc $100UDS BU L

Uﬁg MOIBC T
& se soueleq rmm
AU 1SBI340L 8/




une

Agal
Joly
SR
ged
uer
waunsnipe snusaal 28¢ A
uoneuodsues] aseasul [saolAlss Buipnsues Suipling ppy NON
ISUJ UIYlIA epooai iebueyd Buiyels isebueys wedyiubis on 20
| AIYbnS dos
W04 21Seg MO0~ pejuswaldili salepdn 1001 pes ] Wwes |
IS JSWWINS 0Z A4 ‘POppeR soueles paonpal BiNuc | dised Briy
OZA- 01 PRAOL JOOUDS JSLLILUNG iala
108pNng BI-QTAS LUOJ 1bpng
abupyo jo uondiiossg SOINGS




IgAvLs
HO 1IN @

~ AQ uanuQ
IV HSVO @

ONI L3N @

isenunuod
2)s Buipioy
Bae) pue Ag
SNIdX3 @

sod Apesals
v 9S8a.108D
M se sbely
lonal o1e1s

INIAIY @

T9PL6E @ (got'vL) S99'S (EvL'ga) zgt'6hr (995'9th) (Foz'gaz) yses ul obueyd
¥ro'g9r @ (009'99) - (009'99) (F1g'2Ee) - (FTO'2Ee) SIUBUNSNRY A0 YSED
£yP'Te @ (gog'l) 599'G (E¥T'e) G/61gt (995'91P) {069'EE) alo2u] 19N
099'L¥6'Y @ ELTVS £g6'¥69'6 60g'0¥9'6 EVEYST TGP Lya'y 6PT'E6Y'Y sasuadg 1e10L
- - - - - - - sasuadxg Aleupioriixg 12301
- S — o e - ) ) -
SEGUSENT ABUIRIGRITNG
LriE (80g°L) S09'S {EFT2) G/6'1g€E {G05'5T¥) {(0B9'EL) aloou Buipeiado 19N
sleleinoury ELT'YS £86'¥69'6 Gog'org'6 EPEFST w67 irg'r GrT'Eo9'F sasusdxg AUIRIO 1B10L
rees AODO_ONV OOm.m.&: ........ OOm_mw:: R Hmm o .Omm...ﬂm . . @m._..\.ﬂm . . EOE.B..OQMCGL._.
BEG'gIE 9/6'2E 96g'089 0zL'LF9 LQT'TT artort rertet asuadxg sssusng w 820
€g/'got (9eF'E) 001T'goe S TATR WA LOETE 0S0FET tkleot 128dIpuU] 'esuadx g Wapng
0SE'6EE LEF' Q6T Bor'Ege 2/5'089 2g0'v6 SoL' i £29'LPE walr] ‘esuadxT] Juepims
GBL'/S2 (009"} Q00'561 00920y GBze 005 Lre goz'Sre 218G AoUBONIDO
QoT'gle - 00e'Sh¥ [eleratiand (005 00Q'eee 00T /22 ey
TOLTG 00RGF L2981 £2/'GET QEL'gL 7L 08 GO, SIS0 PRIRISY-LEIS
ogrers (L85t 09E'ztT aFESob'T (geb'n) 099'099 QOr'299 SEXE | pUB Sisuag
elz'ggl'z (920°90T1) 0BT'gSE'S org'zgl's 9TV S50'glo'e PRG'ELY'E salees
SEEUSEENT
Lor'6L6'Y @ (226'19) Irg'ool'6 999'a£9'6 £€o'l22 Qz8'tEP'Y 655'659'P anusAay 1eicL
£58'509 £20'ST S00'790'T 829'GL0'T Gge'ge 6LV Ll BgL'CLY anuUsAsy 1elepad
9BE'go9'E (£ST'FE) £F6'£56'g 09.'€68'9 £66'6L LBEGPTE oBg'Gze't aNUBASY 18IS
28R oL (graen 860'9L0° 1G2'Se0°t 05E'TET 0S0'6Eg oloYralelels SNUBASY 18207
SNLSASL

Burunuay BOUDLIDA je6png 15032404 20UDLURA  3efpng Halgiiel g

15EII0- FenULY

SIRC-O 112D A




JzT'6l ozz'6y 9ee'6¥ gz2'6l 992~ T9g'z 6vg'S0otT ge6'6e-  Lzo'lot- Log'bzZez- yseo ul abueyd
509'[2 6o9'fz Gog'/fe 69g'/e £6g'elr-  gire 18T'ef £29'%- THE L ZST8L1- sUsLISPY A0 4 YSeD
155'te £55't2 15512 £59'tz FA % zve gov'lg Tob'gE- STL'65- gzb'gb- awodU] 1N
76z'gog VPoéez'gog Péz'gog TPo6z'gog $590'€oL tEZ'gEg E69Q'LEL ¥go'fEg OEQ'tEg SS¥'CGg sosuadxy Je10lL
"Gz'gog Pbz'gog  VBe'gog  ¥6z'gog SSo'tas  1fe'geg S£69UEL ye0'LEg OEgTEg G9'ESg sasuadxy AleUpIO 18I0
mmww mm.hm o mmn_m“ ............ R mvvw . m@v@ J— wmww mﬁmm - ﬂvm .ﬁ. ] . Corenodsuniy
IBO'ES 060ty 060'ES 0B0'ES g25'vL 06862 felelon ] Z¥e'sg 2rz'as £Lz08 2SUBGXT SSBUISNIE B SO
£r'ge TEr'ge TEr'ge TEr'ge 2ere 828'9s 69/'ST ket Goz'Ge 1A 1P} esuadig JuspIS
39505 as5Qs 295'0Y 865'09 Geo'ab 2e2'SL €261 QIO grE'eS [PEs D811 'esuacy Wwepms
Bgelr Gog'er 66g'elr 66g'2y Pe'zE QEE'PE QL FE gIEFe BLOTL o6/ (e esines Aouednaog
WE'QE 0SE'gE 0SE'gE oST'gE OSE'QE  o%E'gk  0SEigE 09g'GE  O%E'gE  oSget ey
‘82’0t tgeot ¥ge'ot e ot gT0'6 B6ES'6 QreL S19'6 Far ot £5g°L S1SC0 PelEied-URIS
'0leer Fol'eer  voleer vol'eer oob'got  E2rErt PBLTTT GroTiT FirB'etT gS6'FoL saxE | PuUE 518U
596y 9996k QGS'6FF  QSS'6hY Vi e A R\t R ] G ST A Sgrogr oolablr zobeek ssuees
sasuadxy

Sg'62g 1Y9g'G2g TSg'6eg TSg'GEg f6z'vog EtlP'geg 19t'S08 rgo'oog PIG'ELL G20'ibg enuanay 1810,
[B6'cor  [fG'oor  LLB'0OT  LL6'COT GGz wSzot BLFEST F0Z'E6 0 o SnNuUSAY TRISREA
GETTg  66E'TIQ a6t T BBETIO £80'T#S  ¥OS'00S  AQ'GGES £94°988 TLEEIS g2l'Ges anuaAsy 2101S
Ya ol and S/ e S/ttt SiF/TT Sgg'gtkr  Gof'Gzz  gog'gh 2LLQTT PrS'00z  TOL'IZL aNU2ARY 18307
aNUSADY

.&.@. Moy gad uir 22g ACH 320 dag Gy H WDLUSIRIS SLIOTU

1S5RS0 Jenany




L9/ 'ggV'E L¥Eiees'E Aynb3jejol
0obS'tE- 0 ENeINEN
[FE'ezs'e [rEezq'e 51955y 18N Po1oUIsaIUN
Ti2'9Ce otigTd sannigelr] 1ejol
o o sanmaer wie [ -BuoT 110
TIe'Yee QIV'gil S2HGRM WB.LUND 1R
LT 0 suleuaq pue seuees peniooy
209'Gte LT0YgE 2igRAng SUNoDoY
¥E£G'G- BOEWE SDAUPGRT] WSLND JOUIO
SSINGRTT WUSLND
Aynbg pue senniqery
go6'tzL'E gol'ov6'e 5$)OSSY 110l
RUB'EEL'E 29/'0F5E S1955Y 1USLIND 1810
£99°06 £52' TV S18SSY 1UaLIND 18y10)
259'/8e 299'/C2 2eAISIY SIUN0DDY
o 0 slejsuel ] AUeQUICDISIU|
6irg's6eE £52'109' UsED
S1E55Y JUBLIND
5]9SSY

Sroz/rE/ET  GTGE 0L /8

FIRLING

PUT J587, SHOIASS




Forecast

Revenue Nov Bec
Local Revenue 1,660,871 1,665,251
State Revenue 6,893,181 | 6,893,786
Federal Revenue 1,076,818 | 1,079,415
Total Revenue 9,630,870 9,638,453
Expenses
Salaries 5,466,194 5,482,216
Benefits and Taxes 1,409,170 1,405,348
Staff-Related Costs 135,727 135,727
Rent 445,200 445200
Gcoupancy Service 503,100 502,600
Student Expense, Direct 685,683 686,972
Student Expense, Indirsct 273,219 271526
Office & Business Expense 646,720 646,720
Transportation 83,500 83,500
Total Ordinary Expenses 9,648,513 | 9,539,809
Net Operating Income (17.,642) (1,356)
0
0
9648513
-17642.3
-22450

-40092.3

4,380

605
2,597
7,582

3,977
3,823
0
500
(1,289)
1,693
(0}
(0}
8,704
16,286




BSDS, Inc.
01/23/2020 10:53 AM

Payee Type: Vendor
Check Number

Check Type: Automatic Payment

Check Register by Type

Checking AccountiD: 6

Check Date Cleared Void Void Date  Entity ID Entity Name
266 12/28/2019 X AFLAC AFLAGC
267 12/01/2019 X PRINCIPAL PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND
268 12/27/2019 X KANSASCIT KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT
269 12/23/2019 X TOSHIBALEA  TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES
270 12/24/2019 X DEFFENBAUG DEFFENBAUGH INDUSTRIES
271 12/28/2019 X BCBS BlueCross BlueShield
272 12/2412019 X KCWATER KC WATER SERVICES
273 12/23/2019 X ATT1 ATAT
284 12/06/2019 X FEDEXKINK FEDEX OFFICE
294 12/23/2019 X COUNTRYCCC  Country Club Bank Credit Card
Checking Account ID: & Void Total: 0.00  Total without Voids:
Check Type Total: Automatic Payment Void Total: 0.00  Total witheut Voids:
Payee Type: Vendor Check Type: Check Checking AccountID: 1112
Check Number Check Date Cleared Void Void Date Entity ID Entity Name
1016 12/111/2019 X EDQPS EDOPS
1017 12/23/2019 X MOORMIC MICHAEL MOORE, M.A., C.AS., L.P.C.

Checking Account ID: {142

Payee Type: Vendor
Check Number

Check Type: Check

Check Date Cleared Void Void Date Entity 1D
40381 12/02/2019 X ALL4KIDZ
40382 12/02/2019 X KCPREMIERE
40383 12/02/2019 X THEVIPMOVE
40384 12/13/2019 X LINEANA
40385 12/13/2619 X TUCKVAL
40386 12/13/2019 X THEVIPMOVE
40387 121372019 X WITTALE
40396 12/18/2019 X CLEANING
40397 12/18/2019 NAZARENE
73745135 12/27/2019 X SIGNATUREL
73745136 12/2712019 x COMMUNITIE
73745137 12/2712019 X GREENWOODC
73745138 12/27/2019 X GMPETERS
73745291 12/27/2019 X DESIGN
73745292 12/27/2019 X DESIGN
73745293 12/27/2019 X SCHOLASTIZ
73745294 12/27/2019 X SMITHEREEN
73745295 12/27/2019 X STAPLES
73745296 12/27/2019 X TOSHIBASUP
73745297 12/27/2019 X TOSHIBASUP
73745407 12/27/2019 X PROJECTLEA
73745408 12/27/2018 X SIGNATUREL
73745409 12/27/2019 X STACY
73745410 12/27/2019 X SUNNYSIDE
73745411 1212712019 X AMAZONCOM
73745412 12/27/2018 X BLCSMIC
73745413 1212712018 X K12[TC
73745414 12/27/2018 X JTM
73745415 12/27/2019 X TFAKC
73745416 12/27/2019 X MCMIDANA
73745417 12/27/2019 X LITLAB
73745418 12/27/2019 X DANIEL
73745419 1212712019 X FOLLETTEDU
73745420 121272019 X JADE
73745421 1212712019 X NEWTONAL
73745422 12/27/2019 X NILL
73745423 12/27/2019 X PROSOLU

Void Total: 0,060  Total without Voids:
Checking Account ID: 6
Entity Name
ALL FOR KIDZ

KC PREMIERE TRANSPORTATION

The VIP Movement, LLC

ANASTASIA LINEBACH

VALERIE TUCKER

The VIP Movement, LLC

ALEXANDREA WITT

CLEANING KING, LLC

Nazarens Theclogical Seminary

Signature Landscape LLC

Communities In Schools of Mid-America, Inc.
THE GREENWOOD CONSULTING GROUP LLC
GM Peters Insurance

DESIGN MEGHANICAL, INC.

DESIGN MECHAMNICAL, INC.
SCHOLASTIC, INC.

SMITHEREEN PEST MANAGEMENT
SERVICES, INC

STAPLES ADVANTAGE

TOSHIBA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
TOSHIBA BUSINESS SCOLUTIONS
Project Lead the Way, Inc

Signature Landscape LL.C

STACY COMPANY, LLC
SUNNYSIDE DAIRY, LLC
SYNCB/AMAZON

MICAH BLOSSER

k12 ITC, Inc

JTM PROVISICNS CO., INC

Teach for America Kansas City

DANA MCMILLAN

THE LITERACY LAB

DANIEL JONES & ASSCCIATES P.C.
FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS, INC
JADE ALARM CO., INC,

NEWTON ALLIANCE, LLC

NILL BROS SPORTING GOODS, INC
PRO SOLUTIONS, LLC

Page: 1
User ID: 8AS

Check Amount

3,670.51
757.48
7,539.82
8,008.80
582.31
45,213.03
1,996.33
178.38
25.00
4,485.93
72,457.39

72,457.39

Check Amount

2,500.00
3,650.00
6,150.00

Check Amount
570.00
6,749.47
100.00
300000
4,166.87
100.00
325.00
11,500.00
500.00
588.75
22,500.00
5,000.00
14,668.31
3,560.00
455.60
518.54
140.00

85.44
140.00
125.00
3,830.75
95.00
4,167.00
1,854.20
2.873.01
500.00
7,783.14
1,242.36
5,000.00
3,000.00
8,750.00
10,000.00
25,57
204,74
9,774 .50
294.45
1,012.48




BSDS, Inc. Check Register by Type Page: 2

01/23/2020 10:53 AM User ID: SAS
Payee Type: Vendor Check Type: Check Checking AccountID: 6
Check Nurnber  Check Date Cleared Void Void Date  Entity ID Entity Narme Cheack Amount
73745613 12/27/12019 X WITT Brian Witt 121.22
73745614 12/27/2019 X PAYPOOL2 Paypool LLC ' 259.00
73745615 12/27/2019 X OFFIELD ROGER OFFIELD 268.40
73745618 12/27/2019 X STEPUP Shauna Stephanchick dba Step Up Consulting 1,000.00
73745617 1212712019 X EDOPS EDOPS . 9,816.67
Checking Account ID: 6 Void Total: 0.0¢  Total without Voids: 144,157.27
Check Type Total: Check Void Total: 0.00  Total without Voids: 150,307.27
Payee Type Total: Vendor Void Total: 0.00  Total without Voids; Tz,m’[é% 3

Grand Total: Void Total: 0.00 Total without Voids: 222,764.66




Board Policy 2.08
Federal Fiscal Compliance

SECTION 1. Fiscal Requirements for Receipt of Federal Funds

SECTION 1.1. As a precondition to receive federal funds, prospective recipients must have
effective administrative and financial internal controls.

SECTION 1.1. Brookside Charter School (“Brookside Charter” or the “School”) shall ensure
that federal funds will be used to supplement, not supplant, regular non-federal funds.

SECTION 1.2, The Business Manager shall maintain or cause to be maintained
documentation relating to the School’s receipt of federal funds. The documentation must
clearly demonstrate the supplementary nature of federal funds.

SECTION 2. Prior to expending funds, the Business Manager shall consult the appropriate
guidance to determine what costs are allowable. The Business Manager shall ensure that
all grant funds are expended in accordance with the any applicable law or rules.

SECTION 3. Time-and-Effort Charges and Documentation for Federally-Funded Employees

SECTION 3.1. Costs of personal service compensation are allowable for a federal award to
the extent that they satisfy the specific requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.430 Compensation
— Personal Services. For purposes of this policy, compensation includes salaries, fringe
benefits, stipends, bonuses, and payments made under supplemental contracts.

SECTION 3.2. Charges to federal awards must be based on records that accurately reflect
the work performed. Records are required for all employees who are paid with federal funds
to document the time and effort they spend within the federally-funded program. Time-
and-effort reporting is required when any part of an individual’s salary is charged to a
federal program or used as match for a federal program.

SECTION 3.3. Single Cost Objective. Where employees are expected to work solely on a
single federal award or cost objective, charges for their salaries and wages will be supported
by periodic certifications that the employees worked solely on that program for the period
covered by the certification. These certifications are required to be prepared at least semi-
annually. A sample time certification form is available for download at the following site:
https:/ /dese.mo.gov/financial-admin-services/ general-federal-guidance.

SECTION 3.4, Multiple Cost Objectives. Where employees work on multiple activities or
cost objectives, a distribution of their salaries or wages will be supported by personnel
activity reports (PARs), which are prepared and submitted monthly. Salaries and wages of
employees used in meeting cost sharing or matching requirements of federal awards must
be supported in the same manner as those claimed as allowable costs under federal
awards. A sample PAR form is available for download at the following site:
https:/ /dese.mo.gov/financial-admin-services/ general-federal-guidance.

SECTION 3.5. Reconciliation. It is the School’s practice to charge employee compensation
costs to federal programs based on budget estimates that reasonably approximate how an
employee will work during the year. Documentation records should be adjusted in a timely
manner, however, if there are significant changes in the employee’s work activity. The
School will reconcile payroll charges reflected in employee records at least annually, but
quarterly or semi-annually if possible. The School shall determine if the time necessary
maintaining supporting documentation is worth charging as a direct cost onto a federal
grant. If the School identifies a variance between how an employee’s salary was charged

1




and how the employee actually worked, the School will adjust its payroll charges so that
the amount charged to federal funds reflects the employee’s actual time and effort. The
School will perform this adjustment at least annually, or quarterly or semi-annually if
possible. The final claim form should reflect actual (reconciled) amounts, not budget
estimates. All necessary adjustments must be made such that the final amount charged
to the federal award is accurate, allowable, and properly allocated.

SECTION 4. Requesting Federal Reimbursements

SECTION 4.1. The Business Manager shall initiate the paperwork required for federal grant
expenditure reimbursement. The Business Manager and Superintendent shall review the
financial reports for allowability of expenditures and account codes usage. The Business
Manager shall submit the reimbursement request to the Missouri Department of
Elementary and Secondary Education.

SECTION 4.2. The Board of Education shall review federal reimbursement requests in the
same manner as other bills or requests for payment.

SECTION 4.3. All requests for federal reimbursement shall be submitted as close in time
as is administratively possible to the actual cash outlay. Reimbursements shall only be
requested after costs have been incurred and distributed.

SECTION 4.4. Repayment of excess interest earnings shall be made where required.

SECTION 4.5. The Business Manager and Superintendent, subject to the Board’s periodic
oversight, shall monitor reimbursements to ensure proper request and payment.

SECTION 5. Use of Federal Grant Funds for Procurement

SECTION 5.1. Open and Free Application. The Superintendent, Business Manager, and
Facilities Director shall ensure thai all procurement transactions are conducted in a
manner that provides full and open application. Awards must be made to the
bidder /offeror whose bid/offer is responsive to the solicitation and is most advantageous

to Brookside Charter considering price, quality, and other relevant factors deemed
appropriate by the school. '

SECTION 5.2. Conflicts of Interest. Pursuant to the Conflict of Interest Board Policy 2.17,
no employee, officer, director, or agent of, who has a real or apparent conflict of interest,
will participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by federal
funds. Employees, officers, directors, and agents may also not solicit or accept favors,
gratuities, or anything of monetary value from contractors or their agents.

If the Brookside has reasonable cause to believe an employee, officer, director or agent has
failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform that person of the
basis for such belief and afford him or her an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to
disclose. If, after hearing the employee, officer, director or agent’s response and after
making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, Brookside determines
the employee, officer, director or agent has failed to disclose an actual or possible conilict
of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

SECTION 5.3. Methods of Procurement

Federal law permits five procurement types, which depend, in part, on the purchase price,
as follows: (1) micro-purchases (up to $10,000); (2) small purchases (more than $10,000
but less than $250,000); (3) sealed bid purchases (more than $250,000); competitive-

2




proposal purchases {more than $250,000); and non-competitive purchases (available only
under certain circumstances notwithstanding the dollar amount involved).

For each procurement method, the following rules apply:

(1)

(2}

(3)

(4)

Micro-Purchases ($10,000 or less):

Price or rate quotations shall be obtained from at least three sources.

Small Purchases (more than $10,000 but less than $250,000):

The small purchase process is a relatively simple and informal procurement method
that may be utilized to acquire goods and services that do not exceed the Simplified
Acquisition Threshold (i.e., the dollar amount below which a non-Federal entity may
purchase property or services using small purchase methods, currently, $250,000)

Price or rate quotations shall be obtained from at least three sources.

Sealed Bid Purchases ($250,000 or greater):

Procurement by sealed bids is often preferred for purchases beyond the Simplified
Acquisition Threshold and is the preferred method for construction procurement.

For the sealed bid process to be feasible, (1) there must be a complete, adequate,
and realistic specification or purchase description; (2) two or more responsible
bidders must be willing and able to compete effectively for the business; and (3) the
procurement must lend itself to a firm, fixed-priced contract (e.g., lump sum or unit

price) with the selection of the successful bidder being made principally based on
priced.

If the sealed bid process is utilized, the following requirements apply:
o Bids must be solicited from an adequate number of known suppliers.

o Bidders must be provided sufficient response time before the date set for
opening the bids.

o Invitations to bid must include specifications and must define the requested
goods or services sufficiently to permit proper response.

o Bids must be opened at the time and place outlined in the invitation to bid.

o Afirm, fixed-price contract will be awarded in writing to the lowest responsible
and responsive bidder.

o Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented reason for
rejection,

Competitive-Proposal Purchases ($250,000 or greater):

When conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids, competitive
proposals should be used.

The technique of competitive proposals is normally conducted with more than one
source submitting an offer, and either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type

3




contract is awarded.
o [ithis method is used, the following requirements apply:

o Requests for proposals must be publicized and identify all evaluation factors
and their relative importance. Any response to publicized requests for
proposals must be considered to the maximum extent practical;

o Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources;

o The School must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations
of the proposals received and for selecting recipients;

o Contracts must be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is most
advantageous to the program, with price and other factors considered; and

o The School may use competitive-proposal procedures for qualifications-based
procurement of architectural/engineering (“A/E”) professional services
whereby competitors’ qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified
competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable
compensation. The method, where price is not used as a selection factor, can
only be used in procurement of A/E professional services. It cannot be used to
purchase other types of services though A/E firms are a potential source to
perform the proposed effort.

o The School shall use value engineering clauses in contracts for construction
projects, when possible,

(5) Non-Competitive Purchases (no particular dollar amount):
e Procurement by non-competitive proposals may be necessary on occasion.

o This method is permitted under the following circumstances: {i) the item or service
is available only from one feasible source; (ii) exigent or emergency circumstances
exist; (iii) after solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined
inadequate; or (iv) the federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly

authorizes non-competitive proposals in response to a written request from the
School.

SECTION 5.4. Other Requirements.

(1) ~ The solicitation of bids or offers must provide a clear and accurate description of the
requirements to be fulfilled by the bidder/offeror, technical requirements to be performed
including the minimum acceptable standards, and specific features of brand name or equal

descriptions that bidders/offerors are required to meet and that will be used to evaluate
responses;

(2) Positive efforts shall be made to utilize small businesses, minority-owned firms, and
women’s business enterprises whenever possible;

(3) The type of procurement instruments used (c.g., purchase orders) must be
appropriate for the particular procurement;

(4) Contracts are made only with responsible contractors who possess the potential
ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed

4




procurement;

(5) Procurement documents shall be made available, upon request, to appropriate
government officials;

(6) The School shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual and
administrative issues arising out of procurements;

(7)  The School shall avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items and shall enter
into state and local intergovernmental agreements for use of common or shared goods and
services, when practicable.

(6) All procurements utilizing federal funds shall comply with applicable law, including
2 C.F.R. Part 200.

SECTION 5.5. Record Documentation and Retention,

(1) The Business Manager and Facilities Director shall ensure there is a cost or price
analysis conducted and documented with every procurement action as well as appropriate
documentation for the basis for contractor selection. The Superintendent shall also ensure
the evaluation of the contractor performance and document whether the contractor has
met the terms, conditions, and specifications of the contract. All contract provisions
required by 2 C.F.R. Part 200 must be included.

(2) The School must maintain records sufficient to detail the history of procurement. The
records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: rationale for the
method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and
the basis for the contract price.

(1) Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other School
records pertinent to a federal award must be retained for a period of three years
from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for federal awards
that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the
quarterly or annual financial report. If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before
the expiration of the three-year retention period, the records must be retained until
the litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and
the final action taken.

LN




Board Policy 1.44B
Dispute Resolution for Homeless Students

SECTION 1. Subtitle VII of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, reauthorized in
2001 by Title X, Part C of the No Child Left Behind Act and referred to as the McKinney-
Vento Act, guarantees rights and services to remove educational barriers for homeless
children and youth. The law requires states and school districts to follow a dispute
resolution process when parents, guardians, or unaccompanied youth and schools or local
educational agencies (LEAs) or school districts disagree on the enroliment or educational
placement (school selection) of homeless children and youth.

The dispute resolution process is intended to represent each party’s views for objective
consideration so that disagreements can be brought to closure expeditiously. During the
dispute process, the law requires that the LEA allow the child or youth to attend the school
that the parents or guardians wish their child to attend, or that the unaccompanied youth
wishes to attend, to minimize educational disruption.

SECTION 1.1. The child or youth “shall be immediately admitted to the school in which
enrollment is sought, pending resolution of the dispute” [42 U.S.C. § 11432(g)(3) (E)(@)]. As
students must be enrolled in school pending a dispute, the liaison must ensure that
unaccompanied youth are immediately enrolled in the school [42 U.S.C. § 11432
(&) (3)(E)(iv)]. The U.S. Department of Education (ED) strongly emphasizes the importance
of this requirement in the 2004 Non-Regulatory Guidance:

When enrollment disputes arise, it is critical that students not be kept out of school.
Interruption of education can severely disrupt the student’s academic progress. To avoid
such disruptions, LEAs need an established process for resolving school placement
disputes. Permitting students to enroll immediately in the school of choice pending
resolution of disputes helps provide needed stability [G-5]. While disputes are pending,
students have the right to participate fully in school and receive all services which they
would normally receive. This includes transportation services, as the 2004 Non- Regulatory
Guidance clearly indicates: “The McKinney-Vento Act’s transportation requirements apply
while disputes are being resolved” [H-5].

SECTION 1.2, The parent, guardian, or unaccompanied youth must be provided with a
written explanation of the school’s decision regarding school selection or enrollment,
including the rights of the parent, guardian, or youth o appeal the decision [42 U.S.C. §
11432 (g)(3)(E)(ii)]. In addition, any time a student is sent “to a school other than the school
of origin or the school requested,” the LEA must provide a written explanation of its
decision and an explanation of the right to appeal, whether or not the placement is
disputed [42 U.S8.C. § 11432 (g)(3)(B)(ii)]. In the case of an unaccompanied homeless youth,

the notice explaining the decision and the right to appeal are provided directly to the youth
[42 U.S.C. § 11432 (g)(3)(B)(iii)].

SECTION 1.3. The child, youth, parent, or guardian must be referred to the local homeless
liaison, who will carry out the dispute resolution process as quickly as possible [42 U.S.C.
§ 11432 (g (3)(E)(ii)]. The local homeless liaison must be familiar with the state’s
McKinney-Vento dispute resolution policy and follow all procedures outlined therein.

SECTION 1.4, Dispute Resolution Process

SECTION 1.4.1 Every effort will be made to resolve the complaint at Brookside Charter
belore it is brought to the Missouri Department of Elementary and Secondary Education.
The dispute resolution process is as follows:

1




(1) Notify the School’s Homeless Liaison. The Homeless Liaison serves as a liaison between
the homeless child and the school the child attends. Someone in the school or in the
Superintendent’s office will be able to identify the Homeless Liaison.

a. Request a copy of or access to Brookside Charter’s policies addressing the
education of homeless children and youths and review them. Make an appointment
with the Homeless Liaison to discuss the complaint.

b.If the dispute is not resolved after the initial discussion with the School’s
Homeless Liaison, the complainant can file a complaint in writing to the School’s
Homeless Liaison for further review.

c. In the complaint, include a request that a written proposed resolution of the
dispute or a plan of action be provided within five (5) days* of the date the complaint
was received by the Homeless Liaison. A review of the proposal or plan of action
with the Homeless Liaison should follow.

(2) If the dispute is not resolved at the Homeless Liaison level, the complaint may be
forwarded to the Superintendent for review followed by a meeting with the Superintendent
to discuss the dispute. The complainant should request from the Superintendent a written
resolution within five (5) days* of the date of the discussion.

(3) If the dispute is not resolved at the Superintendent level, the complainant may take the
matter before the Brookside Charter Board of Directors. Brookside Charter will provide a
written resolution of the dispute or a plan of action within thirty days of the date the written
complaint was received by the board of education.*

SECTION 1.4.2. If the dispute is not resolved in a satisfactory manner at the district level,
the complaint may be brought to the Missouri Department of Elementary and Secondary
Education (DESE). Complaints made under this process must be made in writing and
signed by the complainant. The following steps are to be taken:

(1) Address the complaint to the State Homeless Liaison, Federal Discretionary Grants,
P.O. Box 480, Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0480.

(2) Include in the complaint:
a. a detailed description of the dispute;
b. the name(s) and age(s) of the children involved;

c. the name(s) of involved school district personnel and the district{s) they represent;
and

d. a description of attempts that were made to resolve the issue at the school district
level.

{3) The Director of Federal Discretionary Grants (the director) will inform the involved
district(s) of the complaint. The director or the director’s designee will gather needed
information, including documentation and statements of the parties, and may conduct an
independent investigation through an on-site visit if necessary.

(4) Within thirty (30) days* after receiving a complaint, the director will resolve the
complaint and will inform the parties, in writing, of the decision.




(5) If a complainant disagrees with the director’s decision, the complainant may, within ten
(10) working days, appeal the decision to the Deputy Commissioner of Education. This
appeal must be in writing and state why the complainant disagrees with the decision.

(6) Within (thirty) 30 days** after receiving the appeal, the Deputy Commissioner of
Education will render a final administrative decision and notify the complainant and all
other interested parties in writing.

(7) While the dispute is ongoing, the child(ren) in question must be enrolled in school. If
the dispute revolves around which school is the school of best interest for the child, the
child shall remain in the school they currently attend until the dispute is resolved, unless
arrangements already implemented allow the child to attend the school of origin.

SECTION 2. Implementation of Strategies
{1) Avoid disputes when possible by

a. Training school staff members on the provisions of the McKinney-Vento Act and .
their responsibilities for enrolling and serving homeless children and youth;

b. Communicating in person with parents, guardians, and unaccompatied youth to
try to diffuse disagreements before they reach the dispute level; and

c. Training school staff members on trauma-informed approaches to working with
homeless families and youth;

{2) Provide written notice to parents, guardians, or unaccompanied youth when they
disagree with a school’s or LEA’s decision that includes

a. Contact information for the local homeless liaison and the State Coordinator with
a brief description of their roles;

b. A simple form that can be detached and submitted to the school to initiate the
dispute process;

c. A description of the dispute process, timeline, and instructions for what they need
to do to dispute the school’s or LEA’s decision (A sample form for written notice is
in  Appendix 8A of NCHE’s Homeless Liaison  Toolkit: http://
center.serve.org/nche/pr/liaison_toolkit. php); and

d. Notice of the right to obtain the assistance of advocates or attorneys;

(3) Provide parents, guardians, and unaccompanied youth assistance as needed with the
dispute process by

a. Offering to assist parents, guardians, or unaccompanied youth with gathering
information and providing referrals to advocates or attorneys;

b. Ensuring that parents, guardians, or unaccompanied youth understand the
timeline and can meet deadlines and being flexible with deadlines when necessary;

c. Allowing parents, guardians, or unaccompanied youth to submit written and Jor
oral documentation to support their position;




d. Allowing parents, guardians, or unaccompanied youth to submit their
documentation for the dispute at the school to minimize any inconvenience that
would occur by requiring them to go to other offices;

e. Gather information in ways that do not harass or intimidate parents, guardians,
or unaccompanied youth and do not violate confidentiality or the Family Education
Rights and Privacy Act;

1. Keep thorough documentation of all communication with parents, guardians, or
unaccompanied youth related to the dispute;

g During the dispute process, follow up with the school in which the parents or
guardians want their child to attend, or the unaccompanied youth wishes to attend,
to ensure that the child or youth is enrolled and receiving all services, including
transportation if the dispute is over attendance at the school of origin; and

h. Follow up with the parent, guardian, or youth and school once a decision is
rendered to assist with the implementation of the decision.

This is especially important when the decision is not what the parents, guardians, or
youth wanted; the liaison can play a key role in helping them accept the decision and to
put supports in place for transitioning the child or youth to a new school.

* The parties may mutually agree on an extension; however, every effort should be made
to resolve the complaint in the shortest possible time.

** Although the standard procedure allows thirty (30) days for a response, e%ery effort will
be made to resolve the complaint in the shortest possible time.




Board Policy 1.50
Dispute Resolution for Foster Care Students

SECTION 1. In a case where a dispute occurs regarding the determination of best interest

or the provision of other educationally related services for a child or youth in foster care, -

the following process must be used:
(1) Level I of the appeal is to the Superintendent or Designee;

(2) If the dispute is unresolved at the first level, the final appeal (Level II) is to the
Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE).

If a dispute arises over the Best Interest Determination, the child or youth shall remain in
his or her school of origin, while the dispute is being resolved, to minimize disruptions and
reduce the number of moves between schools.

Brookside will collaborate with Children’s Division and the aggrieved parties to resolve the
complaint or dispute at the local level before it is sent to DESE.

Disputes may only be filed by the educational decision-maker or parent. The two parties

may not use Brookside’s dispute resolution process to resolve disagreements amongst
themselves.

SECTION 2. The Dispute Resolution Process—If the educational decision-maker or parent
disagrees with the Best Interest Determination (BID), Brookside Charter shall inform them

in a language and format understandable of their right to appeal the BID. They shall also
be provided the following:

(1) The contact information for Brookside Charter’s foster care point of contact.
(2) An explanation of the Best Interest Determination.
(3) A step-by-step description of how to dispute the BID (Level I procedure).

(4) A statement ensuring the student shall remain in the school of origin, receiving all
appropriate educational services, until the dispute reaches its final resolution.

{5} Timelines for resolutions of the dispute at each level.
(6) Notice of the right to appeal to the DESE if the local-level resolution is not satisfactory.

SECTION 2.1 To dispute a decision related to BID for a child in foster care, an educational
decision-maker or parent must request a dispute resolution in writing by submitting a
dated appeal letter specifying the school in which enrollment is sought and the basis for
seeking enrollment. The submission of the appeal letter by email or delivered to a building
in the BID district initiates the dispute. If submitted by email, the subject “Foster Care

Appeal” should be in the subject line. The appeal letter must include the requestor’s name
and contact information.

The educational decision-maker or parent must submit the appeal letter within ten (10)
days of receiving from Brookside Charter written notice of the right to dispute the decision.
Regardless of how the appeal letter is submitted, Brookside Charter will ensure the its
superintendent or designee receives it immediately.




Students attending their school of origin during the dispute process will be entitled to
receive transportation. Transportation will be provided pursuant to the local transportation

procedures developed collaboratively between Brookside Charter and local child welfare
agencies.

The superintendent or superintendent’s designee will arrange for a personal conference to
be held with the educational decision-maker or parent, the student (if appropriate), and
the child’s case manager or point of contact. The superintendent must have all
documentation from the Best Interest Determination meeting. The conference will be

arranged within ten (10) days of the Brookside Charter’s receipt of the appeal letter and
will take place as expeditiously as possible.

Within five (5) days of the conference, the superintendent or superintendent’s designee will
inform the educational decision-maker or parent and all parties who attended the
conference with the superintendent of the decision in writing, using the contact

information provided in the appeal letter. The written decision provided to the educational
decision-maker must include:

(1) A copy of the complete Level I appeal packet.

(2) The decision rendered at Level I by the superintendent or designee and an explanation
of the decision.

(3) Instructions regarding how to file a Level II dispute, including the name, phone number
and email address of the DESE foster care point of contact.

If the educational decision-maker or parent disagrees with the Level I decision and wishes
to appeal to Level II, the educational decision-maker or parent shall inform Brookside
Charter’s superintendent or designee of the intent to appeal to Level Il within five (5) days
of receipt of the school’s Level | decision. If the educational decision-maker does not appeal
within five (5) days, the child shall be enrolled and provided all appropriate educational
services in the school determined by Brookside Charter.

SECTION 2.2 State Educational Agency (DESE)—If the student’s educational decision-
maker or parent disagrees with the decision rendered by the Brookside Charter’s
superintendent at Level 1, he/she may appeal the decision to the DESE point of contact.
To appeal to Level II, an educational decision-maker or parent must request an appeal in
writing by submitting a dated appeal letter, which must include:

(1) The school in which enrollment is sought and the basis for secking enrollment in that
school.

(2) The name and contact information (phone, email, and mailing address) for the
educational decision-maker or parent.

(3) Best Interest Determination meeting notes and reports.

(4) A copy of the previous appeal letter submitted by the educational decision-maker or
parent,

(9) A copy of the decision rendered by Brookside Charter at Level L.

The letter must be submitted in writing to the DESE foster care point of contact, with the
subject “Foster Child Appeal”. The letter must also be submitted to Brookside Charter’s
superintendent via email or delivered to any Brookside Charter, to the attention of the

2

4




‘ superintendent. The appeal letter must be submitted to both the DESE and Brookside

Charter’s superintendent within five (5) days of receiving the Level I appeal decision from
the Brookside Charter.

Brookside Charter has an additional five (5) days, from its receipt of the educational
decision-maker or parent’s appeal, to submit its response to the appeal letter to the DESE
foster care point of contact, via email with the subject “Foster Child Appeal”. Documents
submitted by either party after the applicable deadlines will not be considered.

The student shall remain in the school of origin until the dispute reaches its final
resolution. The student shall be provided with all appropriate educational services for
which the student is eligible during the dispute process. Students attending their school
of origin during the pendency of the dispute will be entitled to receive transportation
pursuant to the local transportation procedures developed collaboratively between
Brookside Charter and local child welfare agencies.

The Level II decision will be made by a three-person panel including the DESE foster care
point of contact, another DESE staff member, and a representative of the state child welfare

agency. The panel shall make a final decision within thirty (30) days of receipt of the
dispute.

The DESE foster care point of contact will forward the. final written decision to the

educational decision-maker or parent and the Brookside Charter superintendent. The
written decision must include:

(1) A copy of the complete Level 11 packet.

(2) The decision rendered at Level II and an explanation of that decision.

Brookside Charter must implement the DESE’s decision in full, immediately.

For every type of dispute regarding a child in foster care, Brookside Charter and local child
welfare agency must make every effort to resolve the dispute collaboratively at the local
level. All parties are encouraged to seek assistance from the Foster Care Point of Contact

at the DESE and the Education Coordinator at the State Child Welfare Agency (or similar
personnel) prior to any dispute.




SIGN IN SHEET

Brookside Charter School

Date: January 27, 2020

Board of Directors Meeting

Room Number; Library

Name (Print)

JILS\ ht_\ (‘L\Q

Sighature

Date

\/ 21 /’2@2@

‘<\@Unm lél/m

/57/)47/«)

j—u,u STACH
;

)
/nt D, o@ ) ,//,/ @2/ //27/2@.40
AQPH C_L\E'G’LT (;{,«J_Q_Q\éhh /2 '7/20,2@
Y ¢ R ofPur C_Z—D/( [/2_?/2&.'@;,
Z %ﬂ?/f\hl /LﬁfﬂW(’ s 42/7-—' "”“"“’/// /[ -~ 27 -2G20
o J1O i .
Kamilah Lo a{@(l I, \[27 /20
JMM &M. % / Zce%a
,L{) [ ¥ 20

KawvA Dennshil

\]2,’-%{201‘0

'\

ShepniTupd. 7y || V7120
Pa@sra M\J((Q | fo=2(20
J%mm\\(l[ﬁ%\n? A %@E\\L 1/9’)/3@
Pote st | 3 | a—’?,/@@
6:,‘:&;\ ARl y/?ﬁ, I B
o Mo l/\ﬁ/C./A M&QL 20




SIGN IN SHEET

Brookside Charter School

Date: January 27, 2020

Board of Directors Meeting

Room Number: Library

Name (Print)

Signature

Date




